
 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

1.30 PM WEDNESDAY, 14TH OCTOBER, 2020 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet  
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used 

as outlined above. 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
 
Note: 
 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Animal Boarding Licence   

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

3 - 58 

4. Any other business deemed Urgent by the Chair   

 
 

 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Chairperson and/or Vice Chairperson of the Planning, 
Regulatory and Licensing Committee together with 1 or 
2 Members (as the case may be) drawn on a rota basis 
from the Members of the Planning, Regulatory and 
Licensing Committee 

  
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

 
 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 

 

Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Trwydded Lletya Anifeiliaid/ Animal Boarding 
Licence 
 

Enw / Name: Dogsden Daycare Ltd 
 
 

1. SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Mr Julian Bones on behalf of Dogsden Daycare Ltd has made an application for the 

Grant of an Animal Boarding Licence with this Authority.  The premises were 
inspected by the Licensing Department and an authorised Veterinary Surgeon and 
were found to be incompatible with the conditions attached to commercial boarding 
establishments.  The Veterinary Report has concluded that a licence cannot be 
supported due to significant non-compliance. 

 
1.2 Therefore, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and Scheme of Delegation 

the application submitted by Dogsden Daycare Ltd is being brought before the 
Licensing Sub-Committee to determine whether a licence should be granted or not. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 In determination of this matter, Councillors may take the following steps: 
 

 To grant the Animal Boarding Licence; 

 To grant the Animal Boarding Licence applying such conditions that it deems 
necessary for the type of establishment applied for; 

 To refuse to grant the Animal Boarding Licence giving reasons for doing so. 

Date Written 5th October 2020 

Report Author Aneurin Hughes 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 14th October 2020 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This matter was initially scheduled to be heard by the Sub-Committee on the 1st April 

2020, but had to be deferred due to the national lockdown implemented by Central 
Government in view of the Coronavirus Pandemic. 

 
3.2 Mr Bones was advised, by email, of the cancellation of this Hearing on the 25th 

March 2020.  A further email was sent to Mr Bones on the 6th April 2020 advising 
that there was the opportunity to conduct the Hearing remotely.  Mr Bones 
responded on the same day advising that he would prefer a face-to-face Hearing.  
The Licensing Officer emailed Mr Bones on the 4th September 2020 to advise him 
that a decision had been made that face-to-face Hearings would not be re-
implemented in the immediate future, and requesting his availability for the 
remainder of September 2020 for the Hearing to be arranged.  A copy of this email 
chain is attached at Appendix A-1 to this Report. 

 
3.3 A further email was sent to Mr Bones on the 22nd September 2020 advising that it 

had been brought to the attention of the Licensing Department that work had been 
carried out at the premises to achieve compliance with the Veterinary Surgeon’s 
Report.  Mr Bones’ availability for a further Vet’s inspection was requested and 
payment of the Vet’s fee of £183.00.  Mr Bones responded on the same day advising 
he was taking the matter further, but not advising whether he wanted the premises 
re-inspected or not.  A further email was sent to Mr Bones advising that if he did not 
want a further inspection, the matter would be placed before Members for their 
consideration and determination.  A copy of this email chain is attached at Appendix 
A-2 to this Report. 

 
3.4 Mr Julian Bones on behalf of Dogsden Daycare Ltd has made a written application 

for the Grant of an Animal Boarding Licence with this Authority.  The application was 
submitted on the 8th January 2020.  A copy of his application form is attached at 
Appendix A to this Report. 

 
3.5 As part of the application procedure, all applicants must provide a completed 

application form, plans of premises, suitable Public Liability Insurance, payment of 
the required fee.  Once submitted a Vet’s inspection is arranged and the report from 
the Vet is used to assist in determining the application. 

 
3.6 An initial site visit was undertaken by the Licensing Department on the 7th January 

2020.  At this visit it was clear that building work was still being undertaken and that 
the premises were not ready for use in its current state.  Mr Bones was advised that 
he could submit his application form and supporting documentation and we would 
await confirmation of when the premises would be ready to arrange the inspection. 

 
3.7 Mr Bones was further advised that in their current format the pens/enclosures he had 

for the dogs did not look to be big enough in accordance with Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Council’s Standard Conditions attached to an Animal Boarding Licence 
(Dogs).  A copy of these Conditions are attached at Appendix B to this Report.  He 
was also advised that an Officer had inspections booked with the authorised 
Veterinary Surgeon on the 14th February 2020, and that if the premises were ready 
by then they could be included for inspection on that day. 

Page 4



 

 

 
3.8 On the 8th January 2020, Mr Bones submitted his application form (Appendix A).  At 

the time of submission no plans and no Public Liability Insurance were provided.  It 
was agreed with the Licensing Officer that the Insurance documents could be 
provided prior to the Grant of a licence, as the premises were not up and running as 
yet and were still in the construction process. 

 
3.9 The first inspection of the premises took place on the 14th January 2020, and it 

became evident upon entry to the premises that they were not ready to be licensed.   
 
3.10 At this inspection Mr Bones was advised that the pens/enclosures for the dogs were 

not in compliance and would therefore not be licensed – see Condition 4.2.1.  The 
isolation unit was in the main room next to pens/enclosures that other dogs would be 
using.  This was also not in compliance with the standard conditions – see Condition 
5.7.2. 

 
3.11 On the 4th February 2020 the Licensing Authority received a copy of the plans in 

relation to the premises.  The Licensing Officer emailed Mr Bones to seek 
clarification with regards a couple of issues identified on the plans. 

 
3.12 Amended plans were received by the Licensing Authority on the 21st February 2020.  

The Licensing Officer emailed Mr Bones confirmation that the inspection with the 
Veterinary Surgeon would take place at 1030hrs on the 24th February 2020. 

 
3.13 Following this inspection and discussions that took place, the Veterinary Report was 

received on Monday 2nd March 2020 advising: - 
 
 “The significant non-compliance noted above prevents me from supporting a licence 

for this facility.” 

 
 
 

4. PREMISES HISTORY 
 
4.1 An initial enquiry came through to the Licensing Authority on the 4th November 2019 

in relation to Dog Day care Centres.  A site visit was initially arranged for 11th 
November 2019. 
 

4.2 The Licensing Officer emailed Mr Bones on the 6th November 2019 cancelling the 
site visit and included in the email were the relevant application form; the standard 
conditions attached to Boarding Licences and the English regulations with advice 
stating they do not apply in Wales.  A copy of this email is attached at Appendix C to 
this Report. 
 

4.3 On the 6th January 2020 the Licensing Authority received information that a Dog Day 
Care facility was advertising its services on Facebook within the Merthyr Tydfil 
Borough.  A Warning Letter was sent to Mr Bones with another application form and 
another copy of the standard conditions attached to a Boarding Licence for Dogs.  A 
copy of this letter is attached at Appendix D to this Report. 
 

Page 5



 

 

4.4 Licensing Officers attended the premises on the 7th January 2020 to further 
investigate the possible unauthorised activity.  It was clearly evident that the 
premises were not ready for use at that point and advice was given to Mr Bones with 
regards the standard conditions and a further copy of them was given to him. 
 

4.5 It was agreed at this visit that Mr Bones could submit his application form for a 
Boarding Licence for Dogs, initially without the usual supporting documentation, in 
order for a Vets inspection to be booked.  He was advised that the next availability 
for the Vet was the 14th January 2020 and Mr Bones advised both officers that the 
premises would be ready for this date. 
 

4.6 Mr Bones submitted his application form (Appendix A) to the Licensing Authority on 
the 8th January 2020 with a BACS payment of £285.26 being made on the 9th 
January 2020, due to the payment machines not being able to take card payments 
any longer. 
 

4.7 The initial inspection of the premises took place on the 14th January 2020 by 
Licensing Officers and Mr Mike Jessop, the authorised Veterinary Surgeon.  The 
premises were nowhere near being ready for a licence to be issued as extensive 
work was still being carried on and the main floor area of the premises was covered 
in building equipment. 
 

4.8 The Veterinary Surgeon spoke with Mr Bones and enquired as to the research he 
had conducted prior to construction and whether he had sought advice from 
recognised professional bodies.  The pens/enclosures were too small to achieve 
compliance; the isolation unit was in the same room as where the other dogs would 
be; the inspection ceased at this point as it was clear that the premises could not 
achieve compliance. 
 

4.9 It was again emphasized to Mr Bones what the conditions state in relation to 
pen/enclosure sizes and that the isolation unit must be separate and physically 
located a minimum of 5 metres away from the main pens/enclosures. 
 

4.10 Mr Bones attended the Civic Centre on the 15th January 2020 to discuss the 
inspection.  It was re-iterated to him that the premises would need to comply with the 
conditions that would be attached to a licence if granted.  It was also discussed 
about licensing the premises for less dogs than originally applied for, as an initial way 
forward and he would then look to expand over time. 
 

4.11 Mr Bones explained that he was an experienced businessman and had been 
involved in the licensed trade previously and therefore, knew what he needed to do 
in respect of conditions attached to licences. 
 

4.12 The Licensing Team Leader emailed Mr Bones on the 16th January 2020, detailing 
the Licensing Authority’s requirements should he proceed with his intended plan of 
reducing the numbers initially and then expanding.  A copy of this email is attached 
at Appendix E to this Report. 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

4.13 The Licensing Authority received a photograph from Mr Bones on the 20th January 
2020 showing the work being carried out to amend the pen/enclosure sizes.  Mr 
Bones also emailed a copy of his Policies & Procedures and his Business Plan on 
the 23rd January 2020. 
 

4.14 Mr Bones requested an update on the 31st January as he needed “to get 
operational”.  A response was sent advising the Licensing Authority were still 
awaiting the amended plans and confirmation  that the works had been completed as 
advised in the Team Leaders email of 16th January 2020 (Appendix E).  A copy of 
this email is attached at Appendix F to this Report. 
 

4.15 On the 4th February 2020 the Licensing Authority received a copy of the plans in 
relation to the premises.  The Licensing Officer emailed Mr Bones to seek 
clarification with regards a couple of issues identified on the plans on the 5th 
February 2020.  A copy of this email is attached at Appendix G to this Report. 
 

4.16 The Licensing Officer emailed Mr Bones on the 6th February 2020 advising of the 
vet’s availability and requesting his preferred date for inspection.  Clarification was 
sought on a few matters, and advice given that any part of the premises (inside and 
out) where work was still being undertaken would not be inspected. 
 

4.17 Mr Bones confirmed that his date of preference for the inspection was the 24th 
February 2020. 
 

4.18 The Licensing Officer responded to Mr Bones on the 7th February and again asked 
for the clarification previously requested.  Mr Bones was advised that if the 
information was not provided, the inspection planned for 24th February 2020 would 
be re-arranged until such time as the information has been provided.  A copy of this 
email is attached at Appendix H to this Report. 
 

4.19 On the 7th February 2020, information was sought from the Planning Department as 
to whether the proposed activity required a Change of Use consent or whether the 
works merging the two units into one required any specific planning permission or 
Building Control permission.  The Licensing Authority received a response on the 
10th February 2020, and a copy of this is attached at Appendix I to this Report. 
 

4.20 The Licensing Authority received the amended floor plans in response to the email of 
the 7th February 2020 on the 21st February 2020.  The additional information 
requested, however, was not provided.  Despite this, it was agreed to conduct the 
inspection. 
 

4.21 The Licensing Authority and Veterinary Surgeon attended the premises on the 24th 
February 2020 to conduct the inspection.  Whilst improvements had been made in 
some areas, the premises were still not compliant with the standard conditions.  The 
conduct of Mr Bones (argumentative, aggressive and dismissive) during the 
inspection was not acceptable and the Licensing Authority cut short the inspection. 
 

4.22 The Licensing Authority received an email from Mr Bones on the afternoon of the 
24th February 2020 stating that there are no professional bodies concerned with dog 
day care.  A copy of this email is attached at Appendix J to this Report. 

Page 7



 

 

 

4.23 The Licensing Officer spent less than 10 minutes doing a quick search online and 
was able to find the following professional bodies which would be able to provide the 
required advice: -  
 

 Pet Industry Federation - www.petcare.org.uk 

 Association of Dog Boarders - www.associationofdogboarders.co.uk 

 Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals – www.rspca.org.uk 
 

4.24 The Licensing Authority received the Vet’s Report following the inspection on the 2nd 
March 2020.  A copy of this report is attached at Appendix K to this Report. 
 

4.25 A copy of the Vet’s Report and the decision that the application would be required to 
be determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee was sent to Mr Bones on the 5th 
March 2020.  A copy of this email is attached at Appendix L to this Report. 

 
 

5. POLICY 
 
5.1 In considering this application, the Council must have regard to the relevant 

legislation, its own standard conditions of licence for an Animal Boarding Licence 
(Dogs).  Members are also to be mindful of the Model Licence Conditions and 
Guidance for Dog Boarding Establishments issued by the Chartered Institute of 
Environmental Health in May 2016. 

 
 

6. LEGISLATION 
 
6.1 The relevant legislation is the Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963.  The 

relevant sections of this Act are: - 
 
 6.1.1 Section 1(1) – No person shall keep a boarding establishment for animals in 

Wales except under the authority of a licence granted in accordance with he 
provisions of this Act. 

 
6.1.2 Section 1(3) – In determining whether to grant a licence for the keeping of a 
boarding establishment for animals by any person at any premises, a local authority 
shall in particular (but without prejudice to their discretion to withhold a licence on 
other grounds) have regard to the need for securing –  

 
(a) That animals will at all times be kept in accommodation suitable as 

respects constructions, size of quarters, number of occupants, 
exercising facilities, temperature, lighting, ventilation and cleanliness; 

(b) That animals will be adequately supplied with food, drink and bedding 
material, adequately exercised, and (so far as necessary) visited at 
suitable intervals; 

(c) That all reasonable precautions will be taken to prevent and control the 
spread among animals of infectious or contagious diseases, including 
the provision of adequate isolation facilities; 

Page 8

http://www.petcare.org.uk/
http://www.associationofdogboarders.co.uk/
http://www.rspca.org.uk/


 

 

(d) That appropriate steps will be taken for the protection of the animals in 
case of fire or other emergency; 

(e) That a register be kept containing a description of any animals received 
into the establishment, date of arrival and departure, and the name and 
address of the owner, such register to be available for inspection at all 
times by an officer of the local authority, veterinary surgeon or 
veterinary practitioner authorised under section 2(1) of this Act; 

 
and shall specify such conditions in the licence, if granted by them, as appear to the 
local authority necessary or expedient in the particular case for securing all objects 
specified in paragraphs (a) to (e) of this subsection. 

  
6.1.3 Section 2(1) – A local authority may authorise in writing any of its officers or 
any veterinary surgeon or veterinary practitioner to inspect (subject to compliance 
with such precaution as the authority may specify to prevent the spread among 
animals of infectious or contagious diseases) any premises in their area as respects 
which a licence granted in accordance with the provisions of this Act is for the time 
being in force, and any person authorised under this section may, on producing his 
authority if so required, enter any such premises at all reasonable times and inspect 
the and any animals found thereon or any thing therein, for the purpose of 
ascertaining whether an offence has been or is being committed against this Act. 

 
6.1.4 Section 5(1) – References in this Act to the keeping by any person of a 
boarding establishment for animals shall, subject to the following provisions of this 
section, be construed as references to the carrying on by him at premises of any 
nature (including a private dwelling) of a business of providing accommodation for 
other people’s animals: 

  Provided that – 
(a) A person shall not be deemed to keep a boarding establishment for 

animals by reason only of his providing accommodation for other 
people’s animals in connection with a business of which the provision of 
such accommodation is not the main activity; and 

(b) Nothing in this Act shall apply to the keeping of an animal at any 
premises in pursuance of a requirement imposed under, or having effect 
by virtue of, the Animal Health Act 1981. 

 
6.2 The Animal Welfare Act 2006 states at Section 9: - 
 

(1) A person commits an offence if he does not take such steps as are 
reasonable in all circumstances to ensure that the needs of an animal for 
which he is responsible are met to the extent required by good practice.” 

 
(2) For the purposes of this Act, an animal’s needs shall be taken to include- 

(a) Its need for a suitable environment, 
(b) Its need for a suitable diet, 
(c) Its need to exhibit normal behaviour pattern, 
(d) Any need it has to be housed with, or apart from, other animals, and 
(e) Its need to be protected from pain, suffering, injury and disease. 

 

Page 9



 

 

(3) The circumstances to which it is relevant to have regard when applying 
subsection (1) include, in particular- 
(a) Any lawful purpose for which the animal is kept, and 
(b) Any lawful activity undertaken in relation to the animal. 

 
 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 None 
 
 

8. EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
8.1 It has been identified that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) is not required for 

the purpose of this Report.  Please contact the author for details of this decision. 
 
 
 
 
ELLIS COOPER 
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CLLR GERAINT THOMAS 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR 
REGENERATION & PUBLIC 

PROTECTION 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

NO 

 

Page 10



Page 11

hughea1
Text Box
APPENDIX A



Page 12



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

hughea1_1
Text Box
APPENDIX A-1

hughea1_2
Text Box



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21

hughea1_3
Text Box
APPENDIX A-2

hughea1_4
Text Box



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



 

MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ANIMAL BOARDING ESTABLISHMENTS ACT 1963 
 

STANDARD CONDITIONS SUBJECT TO WHICH THE  
ANIMAL BOARDING LICENCE (DOGS) IS GRANTED 

 
1.1 Unless otherwise stated, these conditions shall apply to all buildings and areas to which 

dogs have access and/or which are used in association with the boarding of dogs.  Use of 
the term 'kennel' relates to combined sleeping and individual exercise areas. 
 

LICENCE DISPLAY & INSURANCE 
 
2.1 A copy of the licence and its conditions must be suitably displayed to the public in a 

prominent position in, on or about the boarding establishment. 
 

2.2 There must be appropriate insurance for public liability at the animal boarding 
establishment. The current Insurance Certificate for Public Liability will be made available at 
the premises for inspection by an authorised officer or appointed council veterinary 
practitioner. 
 

CONSTRUCTION 
 
3.1 GENERAL 

 
3.1.1 The establishment must, at all times, be laid out and operated in accordance with an 

approved plan, to be attached to the licence.  Before carrying out any alterations, plans 
must be submitted to and approved by the licensing office of the local authority. 
 

3.1.2 Where wood has been used in existing construction it must be smooth and treated to 
render it impervious.  Wood, floors, partitions, door frames or doors in the dog kennelling 
area.  There must be no projections liable to cause injury. 
 

3.1.3 Fencing materials must be secure and safe. 
 

3.1.4 Sleeping areas of kennels must be so insulated as to prevent extremes of temperature. 
 

3.1.5 The construction must be such that security of the dog is ensured. 
 

3.1.6 All exterior wood must be properly treated against wood rot.  Only products which are not 
toxic to dogs may be used. 
 

3.1.7 All internal surfaces used in the construction of walls, floors, partitions, doors and door 
frames to be durable, smooth and impervious.  There must be no projections or rough 
edges liable to cause injury. 
 

3.2 WALLS 
 

3.2.1 Walls with which dogs may come into contact must be of smooth impervious materials, 
capable of being easily cleansed.  Where concrete or other building blocks or bricks are used 
in such walls, they must be sealed so as to be smooth and impervious, and resealed as 
necessary. 
 

Page 25

hughea1_5
Text Box
APPENDIX B



3.2.2 Junctions between vertical and horizontal sections should be coved. If impractical in existing 
premises, all joints must be sealed. 
 

3.2.3 Partition walls between kennels must be of solid construction to a minimum height of 1.2m 
(4ft). 
 

3.2.4 In new construction, in exercise runs the lower section of partitions in adjoining runs must 
be of solid construction. 
 

3.3 FLOORS 
 

3.3.1 Floors of all buildings individual exercise areas and kennels, must be of smooth, impervious 
materials, capable of being easily cleansed and in new kennels, this must incorporate a 
damp proof membrane. 
 

3.3.2 All floors of kennels and individual exercise areas must be constructed and maintained in 
such a condition as to prevent ponding of liquids. 
 

3.3.3 In new construction floors must be laid to a minimum fall of 1 in 80 leading to a shallow 
drainage channel or effectively covered deep drainage channel. 
 

3.3.4 Communal exercise areas must be suitably drained but need not comply with conditions 
3.3.1 and 3.3.2. 
 

3.5 CEILINGS 
 

3.5.1 Ceilings must be capable of being easily cleansed and disinfected. 
 

3.6 DOORS 
 

3.6.1 Kennel doors must be strong enough to resist impact and scratching and must be fitted to 
be capable of being effectively secured. 
 

3.6.2 Where metal bars and frames are used, this must be of suitable gauge (approximately 10-
14) with spacing adequate to prevent dogs escaping or becoming entrapped.  Where metal 
edging is used, this must not present a risk of injury to the dog. 
 

3.6.3 Door openings must be constructed such that the passage of water/waste is not impeded, 
or allowed to gather due to inaccessibility. 
 

3.7 WINDOWS 
 

3.7.1 All windows which pose a security risk must be escape proof at all times. 
 

3.8 DRAINAGE 
 

3.8.1 The establishment must be connected to mains drainage or an approved, localised sewage 
disposal system. 
 

3.9 LIGHTING 
 

3.9.1 During daylight hours light must be provided to exercise and sleeping areas so that all parts 
are clearly visible. Where practicable this must be natural light. 
 

Page 26



3.9.2 Adequate supplementary lighting must be provided throughout the establishment. 
 
3.10 

 
VENTILATION 
 

3.10.1 Ventilation must be provided to all interior areas without the creation of excessive, localised 
draughts in the bedding area. 
 

3.11 MAINTENANCE 
 

3.11.1 Maintenance and repair of the whole establishment must be carried out regularly. 
 

NUMBER OF ANIMALS 
 
4.1 NUMBER OF DOGS PERMITTED 

 
4.1.1 The maximum number of dogs to be kept at any one time is x (TO BE DETERMINED BY THE 

LOCAL AUTHORITY). 
 

4.1.2 Each dog must be provided with a separate kennel except that dogs from the same house-
hold may share a kennel of adequate size with the written consent of the dogs' owner. 
 

4.1.3 Holding kennels may be provided for temporarily kennelling a dog for not more than 24 
hours. 
 

4.1.4 Holding kennels, if provided, must comply with conditions as required for main kennels.  
Holding kennels must be a minimum area of 2.3 sq.m (25 sq.ft.) 
 

4.1.5 No animals other than dogs are to be boarded within the licensed facilities without the 
written approval of the local authority. 
 

4.1.6 Where stray dogs are accepted by the kennels they must be kept in a separate area away 
from boarded dogs. 
 

4.2 UNIT SIZE, LAYOUT AND EXERCISE FACILITIES 
 

4.2.1 For new kennels each kennel must be provided with a sleeping area of at lease 1.9 sq.m (20 
sq.ft.). 
 

4.2.2 Suitable bedding equipment must be provided which  allows the dog to be comfortable and 
which is capable of being easily and adequately cleaned and sanitised.  Such equipment 
must be sited out of draughts.  All bedding material must be maintained in a clean, parasite 
free and dry condition. 
 

4.2.3 For new kennels each kennel must be provided with an exercise area of at least 2.46 sq.m 
(26 sq.ft) (for dogs up to 24 inches high at the shoulder) or 36 sq.ft. for larger dogs, which is 
separate from the bedding area and exclusive to that kennel, for free use by the dog at all 
times except at night. 
 

4.2.4 Kennels must have a minimum height of 1.8m (6ft) to facilitate adequate access by kennel 
staff for cleaning. 
 

4.2.5 Kennels and exercise areas must open onto secure corridors or other secure areas so that 
dogs are not able to escape from the premises. 
 

Page 27



4.2.6 Exercise areas must not be used as bedding areas. 
 

MANAGEMENT 
 
5.1 TRAINING 

 
5.1.1 A written training policy must be provided. Systematic training of staff must be 

demonstrated to have been carried out. 
 

5.2 TEMPERATURE IN KENNELS 
 

5.2.1 Heating facilities must be available in the KENNEL and used according to the requirements 
of the individual dog. 
 

5.2.2 There must be some part of the dogs sleeping area where the dog is able to enjoy a 
temperature of at least 10°(50°F) 
 

5.2.3 In isolation kennels, there should be a means of maintaining the temperature at a level 
suitable for the conditions of the dog and dependent on veterinary advice. 
 

5.3 CLEANLINESS 
 

5.3.1 All kennels, corridors, common areas, kitchens etc. must be kept clean and free from 
accumulations of dirt and dust and must be kept in such a manner as to be conducive to 
maintenance of disease control and dog comfort. 
 

5.3.2 Each occupied kennel must be cleansed daily. All excreta and soiled material must be 
removed from all areas used by dogs at least daily and more often if necessary. 
 

5.3.3 All bedding areas must be kept clean and dry. 
 

5.3.4 Each kennel must be thoroughly cleansed and disinfected and dried upon vacation.  All 
fittings and bedding must also thoroughly cleansed and disinfected at that time. 
 

5.3.5 Facilities must be provided for the proper reception, storage and disposal of all waste. 
Particular care should be taken to segregate clinical waste arising from the treatment and 
handling of dogs with infectious diseases. The final disposal route for all such waste must be 
incineration. 
 

5.3.6 Measures must be taken to minimise the risks from rodents, insects and other pests within 
the establishment. 
 

5.4 FOOD AND WATER SUPPLIES 
 

5.4.1 All dogs must be adequately supplied with suitable food.  Wholesome water must be 
available at all times and changed daily. 
 

5.4.2 Eating and drinking vessels must be capable of being easily cleansed and disinfected to 
prevent cross contamination.  They must be maintained in a clean condition. 
 

5.4.3 Eating vessels must be cleansed after each meal. 
 

5.4.4 Drinking vessels must be cleansed at least once a day. 
 

Page 28



5.5 KITCHEN FACILITIES 
 

5.5.1 Exclusive facilities, hygienically constructed and maintained, must be provided for the 
storage and preparation of food for the dogs. 
 

5.5.2 Where fresh and cooked meats are stored, refrigeration facilities must be provided, and 
potential food contamination must be avoided. 
 

5.5.3 A sink with hot and cold water must be provided for the washing of food equipment and 
eating and drinking vessels. A separate wash-hand basin with hot and cold water must also 
be provided for staff use. 
 

5.5.4 Containers must be provided for the storage of foods and shall be so constructed and kept 
in such good order, repair and condition as to be proof against insects and other pests. 
 

5.6 DISEASE CONTROL AND VACCINATION 
 

5.6.1 Adequate precautions must be taken to prevent and control the spread of infectious and 
contagious disease and parasites amongst the dogs, staff and visitors. 
 

5.6.2 Proof must be provided that dogs boarded or resident have current vaccinations against 
Canine Distemper, Infectious Canine Hepatitis (Canine adenovirus), Leptospirosis (L.canicola 
and L.icterohaemorrhagiae) and Canine Parvovirus and other relevant diseases.  The course 
of vaccination must have been completed at least four weeks before the first date of 
boarding or in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.  A record that this proof has 
been supplied must be kept on site throughout the period that the dog is boarded. 
 

5.6.3 Advice from a veterinary surgeon must be sought in case of signs of disease, injury or illness. 
Where any dog is sick or injured any instructions for its treatment which have been given by 
a veterinary surgeon must be strictly followed. 
 

5.6.4 A well stocked first-aid kit suitable for use on dogs must be available and accessible on site. 
 

5.6.5 A suitable range of muzzles of varying sizes and a suitable dog catching device must be kept 
on site. 
 

5.7 ISOLATION 
 

5.7.1 Isolation facilities must be provided. 
 

5.7.2 In existing facilities these isolation facilities must be in compliance with the other boarding 
requirements but must be separate and physically isolated from the main kennels. This 
must be a minimum 5m (15ft.). (See also temperature control.) 
 

5.7.3 Adequate facilities to prevent the spread of infectious disease between the isolation kennel 
and other kennels, must be provided. 
 

5.7.4 Hands must be washed after leaving the isolation facilities before visiting the other kennels. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 
5.8 REGISTER 

 
5.8.1 A register A Register must be kept of all dogs boarded. The information kept must include the 

following: 

 date of arrival 

 name of dog, any identification system such as microchip, number or tattoo 

 description, breed, age and gender of dog 

 name, address and telephone number of owner or keeper 

 name, address and telephone number of contact person whilst boarded 

 name, address and telephone number of dog's veterinary surgeon 

 anticipated and actual date of departure 

 health, welfare and nutrition requirements. 
 

5.8.2 The register must be kept readily available for a minimum of 24 months and kept in such a 
manner as to allow an authorised officer easy access to such information. 
 

5.8.3 Where records are computerised, a back-up copy must be kept. The register must also be 
available to key members of staff of the establishment at all times. 
 

5.9 IDENTIFICATION OF KENNELS 
 

5.9.1 Each kennel must be clearly marked (eg numbered), and a system in place which ensures 
that relevant information about the dog in that kennel is readily available. 
 

5.10 SUPERVISION 
 

5.10.1 A fit and proper person must always be present to exercise supervision and deal with 
emergencies whenever dogs are boarded at the premises. 
 

5.10.2 Dogs must be visited at regular intervals, as necessary for their health, safety and welfare. 
 

5.11 FIRE PRECAUTIONS 
 

5.11.1 Appropriate steps must be taken for the protection of the dogs in case of fire or other 
emergencies. 
 

5.11.2 A proper emergency evacuation plan and fire warning procedure must be drawn up and 
posted on the premises. This must include instructions to where dogs are to be evacuated in 
the event of a fire or other emergency. 
 

5.11.3 Fire fighting equipment must be provided in accordance with advice given by the Fire 
Prevention Officer. 
 

5.11.4 All electrical installations and appliances must be maintained in a safe condition. There must 
be a residual current circuit breaker system on each block of kennels. 
 

5.11.5 Heating appliances must not be sited in a location or manner where they may present a risk 
of fire, or risk to dogs. 
 

5.11.6 Precautions must be taken to prevent any accumulation which may present a risk of fire. 
 

5.11.7 There must be adequate means of raising an alarm in the event of fire or other emergency. 
 

Page 30



Page 31

hughea1_6
Text Box
APPENDIX C



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

hughea1_7
Text Box
APPENDIX D



Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Baber, Joanne
Sent: 16 January 2020 12:00
To: julesbones2@gmail.com
Cc: Hughes, Aneurin
Subject: Dogs Den
Attachments: Animal Boarding Conditions - Dogs.doc

Importance: High

Good morning Julian, 
 
Further to your discussion with Aneurin yesterday, I again attach a copy of this Authority’s conditions in relation to 
boarding establishments.  You are advised to read each condition thoroughly to ensure that you are able to meet all 
of them prior to the veterinary inspection. 
 
I understand from Aneurin that your intention is to licence a lower number of dogs to start with, and then apply to 
vary the licence to add more dogs when you have built more ‘sleeping areas’.  Please note that to vary the licence to 
increase the number of dogs, a veterinary inspection will be required and you will be liable for the cost of that 
inspection. 
 
In relation to the current application, you will need to submit amended plans to the Licensing Department reflecting 
the new layout and sizes.  When the premises is ready for inspection, please let us know and we will make the 
arrangements for the veterinary inspection.  
 
Cofion / Regards, 
  

Jo 
  
Joanne Baber 
Arweinydd Tîm Trwyddedu / Licensing Team Leader 
  
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Canolfan Ddinesig / Civic Centre 
Stryd y Castell / Castle Street 
Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 
  
Ffôn / Tel: 01685 725000 
E-bost / E-mail: joanne.baber@merthyr.gov.uk 
  
 

Page 37

hughea1_8
Text Box
APPENDIX E



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Hughes, Aneurin
Sent: 31 January 2020 15:04
To: 'julesbones2'
Cc: Baber, Joanne
Subject: RE: dogsden [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]
Attachments: Dogs Den

Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Hi Julian, 
 
Thanks for your email.  I have been waiting for the amended plans and confirmation of works completion to 
be submitted as per Joanne’s email of 16th January (copy attached).  Once these have been received I can 
arrange for a re-inspection with the Vet, subject to his availability.  I would also advise that both my and 
Joanne’s availability over the next several weeks is limited. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
Cofion/Regards 
 
Aneurin 
 
Aneurin Hughes 
Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 
 

From: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  
Sent: 31 January 2020 14:28 
To: Hughes, Aneurin <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: dogsden 
 
 
Hi  
One week later and still waiting you to return... ? Did you say you would be on holidays... I need to get 
operational  
please advise  
julian bones 
 
 
 
Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 
 

Page 39

hughea1_9
Text Box
APPENDIX F



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Hughes, Aneurin
Sent: 05 February 2020 16:55
To: 'julesbones2'
Cc: Baber, Joanne
Subject: RE: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Hi Julian, 
 
Thanks for the plans, after an initial viewing of them there may be an issue with the isolation unit.  In our 
conditions, at 5.7.2, any isolation unit has to be separate and physically isolated from the main kennels by 
a minimum of 5 metres (15 foot).  Looking at your plans the unit is next door to Pen 13 and looks like it is 
within the minimum distance of Pens 10, 11 & 12.  As this is not in compliance with the conditions it may be 
that the above pens would not be licensed for use. 
 
I have emailed our Vet for his availability and as soon as I get this I will arrange the inspection with you.   
 
Many thanks, 
 
Cofion/Regards 
 
Aneurin 
 
Aneurin Hughes 
Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 
 

From: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  
Sent: 04 February 2020 19:47 
To: Hughes, Aneurin <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf 
 

***WARNING THIS IS AN EXTERNAL EMAIL***  
***External attachment warning, although this email has been scanned for threats, 
please take extra care before opening attachments from unrecognised senders.***  

All other requirements  
awaiting your inspections  
julian bones 
 
 
 
 
Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 
 

Page 41

hughea1_10
Text Box
APPENDIX G



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Hughes, Aneurin
Sent: 07 February 2020 15:06
To: 'julesbones2'
Cc: Baber, Joanne
Subject: RE: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Hi Julian, 
 
Further to your email below, I would advise that you must submit an amended plan detailing the 
pens/enclosures and internal/external areas only that are completed and ready for licensing, as these will 
be the only areas that will be inspected on the 24th February.  Any pens/enclosures and internal/external 
areas not completed need to be removed from the plan. 
 
Again, I request that you provide the following information: - 
 

 Can you please advise of the sizes of each pen/enclosure. 
 What impact will the ongoing building work have in respect of the dogs at the premises, with 

particular emphasis on the open areas that they will have access to? 
 As and when further pens/enclosures are completed a further inspection will be required prior to 

them being added to your licence and being used.  If the pens/enclosures are being done in 
different stages then more than one inspection will be required.  This will incur additional costs to 
yourself.  Can you confirm your future plans and timings for finishing the building works. 

 The isolation unit will have be ready for the inspection and compliant with the details previously 
provided.  Please confirm this. 

 
Should this information not be provided, the inspection may have to be re-arranged until such time as it is. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
Cofion/Regards 
 
Aneurin 
 
Aneurin Hughes 
Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 
 

From: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  
Sent: 07 February 2020 12:30 
To: Hughes, Aneurin <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

***WARNING THIS IS AN EXTERNAL EMAIL***  
***External attachment warning, although this email has been scanned for threats, 
please take extra care before opening attachments from unrecognised senders.***  

Hi Aneurin 
x5 enclosures completed 10 days ago 
 
 
 
Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 

Page 43

hughea1_11
Text Box
APPENDIX H



2

 
 
-------- Original message -------- 
From: "Hughes, Aneurin" <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk>  
Date: 07/02/2020 12:18 (GMT+00:00)  
To: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  
Cc: "Baber, Joanne" <Joanne.Baber@merthyr.gov.uk>  
Subject: RE: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]  
 

Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Hi Julian, 

  

Further to your email below, I will notify the Vet that the 24th is your preferred date. 

  

Can you also please respond to the queries raised in yesterday’s email (as highlighted below).  Should the 
pens/enclosures and all areas that are to be covered by the licence not be ready for inspection on the 24th 
then the inspection will not be able to take place. 

  

I look forward to your response. 

  

Many thanks, 

  

Cofion/Regards 

  

Aneurin 

  

Aneurin Hughes 

Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 

  

From: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  
Sent: 07 February 2020 10:27 
To: Hughes, Aneurin <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

  

Page 44



3

***WARNING THIS IS AN EXTERNAL EMAIL***  
***External attachment warning, although this email has been scanned for threats, 
please take extra care before opening attachments from unrecognised senders.***  

I am sure you didnt want this sent to you ? 

24th is good  

  

  

  

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 

  

  

-------- Original message -------- 

From: "Hughes, Aneurin" <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk>  

Date: 06/02/2020 15:32 (GMT+00:00)  

To: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  

Cc: "Baber, Joanne" <Joanne.Baber@merthyr.gov.uk>  

Subject: RE: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]  

  

Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Hi Julian, 

  

Further to our emails yesterday I have now received the Vet’s availability.  His next availability is on the 24th 
February, 2nd or 5th March.  Both myself and Joanne are also available on those dates at the current time. 

  

A couple of items needs clarification before the inspection: -  

  

         Can you please advise of the sizes of each pen/enclosure. 

         From the plans, which pens/enclosures are ready for inspection as these will be the only ones that 
can be licensed?  An amended plan may be required.   

Page 45



4

         What impact will the ongoing building work have in respect of the dogs at the premises, with 
particular emphasis on the open areas that they will have access to? 

         As and when further pens/enclosures are completed a further inspection will be required prior to 
them being added to your licence and being used.  If the pens/enclosures are being done in 
different stages then more than one inspection will be required.  This will incur additional costs to 
yourself.  Can you confirm your future plans and timings for finishing the building works. 

         The isolation unit will have be ready for the inspection and compliant with the details I provided 
yesterday. 

  

I would be grateful if you could provide the above information at the earliest opportunity and confirm which 
date would be best for the inspection and the best time for you.  The inspection will only consider 
pens/enclosures and areas that have been completed.  Any part of the premises and/or area (inside or out) 
where work is still being undertaken will not be inspected as it cannot be included on the licence 

  

Many thanks, 

  

Cofion/Regards 

  

Aneurin 

  

Aneurin Hughes 

Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 

  

From: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  
Sent: 05 February 2020 17:07 
To: Hughes, Aneurin <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

  

sorry post script  

could put kennels outside, but only to ask as further option.. which can be built at a further date 

  

  

  

Page 46



5

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 

  

  

-------- Original message -------- 

From: "Hughes, Aneurin" <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk>  

Date: 05/02/2020 16:54 (GMT+00:00)  

To: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  

Cc: "Baber, Joanne" <Joanne.Baber@merthyr.gov.uk>  

Subject: RE: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]  

  

Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Hi Julian, 

  

Thanks for the plans, after an initial viewing of them there may be an issue with the isolation unit.  In our 
conditions, at 5.7.2, any isolation unit has to be separate and physically isolated from the main kennels by 
a minimum of 5 metres (15 foot).  Looking at your plans the unit is next door to Pen 13 and looks like it is 
within the minimum distance of Pens 10, 11 & 12.  As this is not in compliance with the conditions it may be 
that the above pens would not be licensed for use. 

  

I have emailed our Vet for his availability and as soon as I get this I will arrange the inspection with you.   

  

Many thanks, 

  

Cofion/Regards 

  

Aneurin 

  

Aneurin Hughes 

Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 

  
Page 47



6

From: julesbones2 <julesbones2@gmail.com>  
Sent: 04 February 2020 19:47 
To: Hughes, Aneurin <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: DogsDen FloorPlan.pdf 

  

***WARNING THIS IS AN EXTERNAL EMAIL***  
***External attachment warning, although this email has been scanned for threats, 
please take extra care before opening attachments from unrecognised senders.***  

All other requirements  

awaiting your inspections  

julian bones 

  

  

  

  

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 

  

Croesawn ohebu yn Gymraeg a fydd hyn ddim yn arwain at oedi. 
 
Mae'r e-bost hwn ac unrhyw ffeiliau a drosglwyddir gydag ef yn gyfrinachol ac wedi'u bwriadu ar gyfer pwy bynnag y cyfeirir ef ato neu atynt. 
Mae cynnwys yr e-bost hwn cynrychioli barn y sawl a enwir uchod, felly nid ydyw'n dilyn ei fod yn cynrychioli barn Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Merthyr Tudful. 
 
Darllenwch ein hysbysiadau preifatrwydd i ddarganfod mwy am sut rydym yn defnyddio eich gwybodaeth bersonol. 
 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful 
Canolfan Dinesig 
Stryd Y Castell 
Merthyr Tudful 
CF47 8AN 
 
Teleffon: 01685 725000 
 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh and this will not lead to a delay. 
 
This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. The contents of this e-mail represent the views of the individual(s) named above and do not necessarily represent the views of 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. 
 
Please read our privacy notices to find out more about how we use your personal information. 
 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Castle Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 
 
Telephone: 01685 725000 

Page 48



7

 

 
http://www.merthyr.gov.uk 

Croesawn ohebu yn Gymraeg a fydd hyn ddim yn arwain at oedi. 
 
Mae'r e-bost hwn ac unrhyw ffeiliau a drosglwyddir gydag ef yn gyfrinachol ac wedi'u bwriadu ar gyfer pwy bynnag y cyfeirir ef ato neu atynt. 
Mae cynnwys yr e-bost hwn cynrychioli barn y sawl a enwir uchod, felly nid ydyw'n dilyn ei fod yn cynrychioli barn Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Merthyr Tudful. 
 
Darllenwch ein hysbysiadau preifatrwydd i ddarganfod mwy am sut rydym yn defnyddio eich gwybodaeth bersonol. 
 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful 
Canolfan Dinesig 
Stryd Y Castell 
Merthyr Tudful 
CF47 8AN 
 
Teleffon: 01685 725000 
 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh and this will not lead to a delay. 
 
This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. The contents of this e-mail represent the views of the individual(s) named above and do not necessarily represent the views of 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. 
 
Please read our privacy notices to find out more about how we use your personal information. 
 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Castle Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 
 
Telephone: 01685 725000 
 

 
http://www.merthyr.gov.uk 

Croesawn ohebu yn Gymraeg a fydd hyn ddim yn arwain at oedi. 
 
Mae'r e-bost hwn ac unrhyw ffeiliau a drosglwyddir gydag ef yn gyfrinachol ac wedi'u bwriadu ar gyfer pwy bynnag y cyfeirir ef ato neu atynt. 
Mae cynnwys yr e-bost hwn cynrychioli barn y sawl a enwir uchod, felly nid ydyw'n dilyn ei fod yn cynrychioli barn Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Merthyr Tudful. 
 
Darllenwch ein hysbysiadau preifatrwydd i ddarganfod mwy am sut rydym yn defnyddio eich gwybodaeth bersonol. 
 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful 
Canolfan Dinesig 
Stryd Y Castell 
Merthyr Tudful 
CF47 8AN 
 
Teleffon: 01685 725000 
 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh and this will not lead to a delay. 

Page 49



8

 
This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. The contents of this e-mail represent the views of the individual(s) named above and do not necessarily represent the views of 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. 
 
Please read our privacy notices to find out more about how we use your personal information. 
 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Castle Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 
 
Telephone: 01685 725000 
 

 
http://www.merthyr.gov.uk 

Page 50



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Cross, David
Sent: 10 February 2020 15:12
To: Hughes, Aneurin
Subject: RE: Unit 14 D & E, Pant Industrial Estate, Pant [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Hi Aneurin, 
 
I have checked our records and we currently have an application submitted for the change of use of the property to 
a dog day care facility. At present the application is not valid as it is missing documents required. Once the 
application is valid, then we can proceed with the consultation and determination of the application. At this stage, 
no review of whether the proposal will be acceptable or not has been undertaken. 
 
It is also highly likely that they will need building regulation permission as well. 
 
Hope this helps 
 
Kind regards 
 

David Cross  
Prif Swyddog Cynllunio / Principal Planning Officer 
BSc (Cynllunio), Ma (Dylunio Trefol), MRTPI / BSc (Planning), Ma (Urban Design), MRTPI 
Ffôn / Tel: 01685 724632 
E-bost / Email:  david.cross@merthyr.gov.uk  
 

Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Uned 5, Parc Fusness Triongl / Unit 5, Triangle Business Park 
Pentrebach, Merthyr Tudful / Pentrebach, Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4TQ 
 

 
 

From: Hughes, Aneurin <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk>  
Sent: 07 February 2020 15:21 
To: Cross, David <David.Cross@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: Unit 14 D & E, Pant Industrial Estate, Pant [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Hi David, 
 
I wonder if you can help or point me in the right direction. 
 
I have received an application for a Dog Day Care Unit at the above address.  I have checked the Rating 
List and found it is listed as 2 separate units with RV’s of £8,600 (Unit D) and £9,800 (Unit E).  The 
occupier of the Unit is Dogsden Day Care Ltd (Co No 12384239).  The Director is Mr Julian Bones and he 
has been in the merged Unit since at least early November 2019. 
 
Would he have needed Planning permission or Building Control permission to merge the 2 units?  If so, 
can you advise if he has got the appropriate permissions in place.  Also, as he is using the premises as a 
Dog Day Care Centre would this require a change of use? 
 
Any help/advice is greatly appreciated. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
Cofion/Regards 

Page 51

hughea1_12
Text Box
APPENDIX I



2

 
Aneurin 
 
Aneurin Hughes 
Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 
 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Canolfan Ddinesig / Civic Centre 
Stryd y Castell / Castle Street 
Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 
  
Ffôn / Tel: 01685 725000 
E-bost / E-mail: aneurin.hughes@merthyr.gov.uk 
 

Page 52



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: dogsdendaycare1 <dogsdendaycare1@gmail.com>
Sent: 24 February 2020 15:06
To: Hughes, Aneurin
Subject: inspection

As their are no professional body in dog day care suggest ask a different question infuture as that is 
irrelevant... The only bodies out there are societies clubs and groups of like minded businesses operators..  
be warned if you ask to join as you will see my post... Fb dogdaycare owners and staff..   
They have given my advise with mostly all here, from using pet friendly disinfectant to terms and 
conditions, eta. 
The fuse box which has been removed from Hydrotherapy room is actually nothing to do with the day care 
section as it is a different unit.. and there are two fuse boxes .. one for d and the other for e... 
I have followed your requirements to the letter ...... 
I feel insulted when asked the same question more than 3 times.... I am not thick ..You must understand I 
have done home work and researched this business and do not expcet to be spoken to or treated like an idiot, 
ever.. 
I have asked Declan sammon to become involved...  
julian bones 
 
 
 
Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone. 
 

Page 53

hughea1_13
Text Box
APPENDIX J



This page is intentionally left blank



 
	

    Mike Jessop BVetMed MRCVS 
  Veterinary Expert 
  PO Box 575 
  Swansea 
  SA8 9AW 

 
 
Report of Inspection visit to DogsDen Ltd, Unit D & E 14, Pant Industrial Estate, CF48 2SR owned by Mr. J. 
Bones. Carried out on 24th February 2020 at the request of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council under 
the Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963. 
 
Dated: Sunday, 1 March 2020  Signed:  
 
      

M.K. Jessop 
 
 
This report is based on a visual inspection of the kennel site made on 24th February 2020. To review the 
premises for a first annual license for 2020 
 
Previous areas of concern: 
 
1. Premises. 

1.1. The facilities make use of two standard industrial units that have been fitted out to provide the 
day-care facilities. 

1.1.1. The construction is thin walled and with a non-insulated roof. Whilst not a problem for 
general construction this will cause difficulties in maintaining a compliant temperature and 
ensuring good ventilation. 

1.1.2. The area was divided into a reception space, a large play area, cubicles for holding the 
individual dogs and an out door area. Additionally, there was a space available for isolation. 

1.1.3. There was some painted fibreboard panelling along the back wall. The low position exposed 
it to floor washing and dog urine. Such areas should be clad and sealed. 

1.2. The play area was of sufficient space for the applied number of dogs (5). 
1.3. The individual pens were of sufficient size, at 3.5m2, and compliant with the boarding conditions 

(MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL, ANIMAL BOARDING 
ESTABLISHMENTS ACT 1963, STANDARD CONDITIONS SUBJECT TO WHICH THE 
ANIMAL BOARDING LICENCE (DOGS) IS GRANTED) section 4.1.4. that gives a minimum of 
2.5m2. 

1.3.1. The construction of these pens was of concern. The framework was standard wooden 
pallets that had been clad in uPVC. Where this covered the underlying pallet, it provided good 
impervious surfacing that could be easily cleaned. Unfortunately, the covering did not extend to 
the hinge area of the door and it was here that ingress of cleaning water, dog urine and other 
fluids could be absorbed into the wood. 

1.3.2. The door of the pen was constructed of feather-board that had been gloss painted. The 
material is not smooth by its design. The use of an impervious paint is reasonable provided 
that it will withstand damage. There was evidence of significant scratching by a contained dog 
that had broken through the paint layer to expose the underlying absorbent material. 
Additionally, the cut edges of the board , where it hinged and where it ran against the floor, had 
not been sealed. Both would allow easy absorption of fluids (especially floor cleansing fluids 
along the lower edge) into the door structure. 

1.3.3. It was advised that heavier doors were not possible because the pallet frame was not robust 
enough to support their weight. This leaves concerns about the suitability of the building 
materials. 

1.3.4. The use of completely non-visual containment will not fulfil the need (under the animal 
welfare act 2006) for the dog to be housed with, or apart from other dogs. The dogs need to be 
able to express their need to choose to either see or not see other boarded dogs. The pen 
should provide an individual hide area but also allow the dog to see the surrounding area. I.e. 
a choice to hide or not. 

Page 55

hughea1_14
Text Box
APPENDIX K



	 	 	

1.3.5. The outdoor exercise area was sufficient for the proposed 5 dogs. There was still work to be 
done to endure a safe and even base to the area. There needs to be enrichment of the area to 
allow play and activities at various levels. One side was secured with chain-link fencing at a 
height of 1.2m that was too low for effective containment. I would expect 1.8m as a minimum 
or a sloped containment at the top of the fence should it be lower than 1.8m. The opposite end 
containment was a mixture of untreated feather-board and wooden pallet and again set at a 
height of 1.2m. The outside area was not safe to use for free exercising and was not yet ready 
for such use. 

1.4. The isolation area was just completing construction. It was of sufficient size, at 2.6m2 for the 
temporary holding of dogs, i.e. occupants should not be held for longer than 24 hours. (section 
4.1.4 of the MTCBC guidance. 

1.4.1. The construction was uPVC frame but the panels were painted feather board. The use of 
wood, especially feather board is unacceptable in an isolation area due to the difficulty to 
effectively clean the uneven surface. 

1.4.2. The location was not compliant with section 5.7.2 but there was a separate access and there 
was a physical means of closing the area from the other dog activities occurring on-site. The 
proximity of the facility could be compliant provided there was a detailed and robust barrier 
nursing protocol drawn up and signed off by the registered veterinary surgeon. 

1.4.3. There was no hot and cold running water next to the isolation facility and therefore section 
5.7.4 of the guidance would be a non-compliance. 

1.5. Facility management was inspected but this was limited because there had been no daycare 
admissions prior to the license application procedure. 

1.5.1. Booking and admission consent forms were available and satisfactory. 
1.5.2. A First Aid kit was available. 
1.5.3. There was a fire management plan in place 
1.5.4. The electrical installations needed certification for safety. 

1.6. Biosecurity 
1.6.1. There was a plan to inspect all vaccination records for daycare dogs. 
1.6.2. The concern was the communal entrance for the daycare dogs and the exercise area was 

also the access point for the dog grooming services and the hydrotherapy services. If that 
arrangement is to persist, all dogs entering that area must be checked for current vaccination 
protection and there should be a system in place to check for parasitic control for both internal 
parasites (gut worms etc) and external parasites (fleas, ticks etc). 

1.6.3. Cleaning protocols were not sufficiently robust to ensure compliance. Mr. Bones did not 
appear to understand the correct use of disinfectant and had no written protocol for use of the 
product shown. To achieve effective control of virus protection the chosen disinfectant would 
need to be used at full strength. The chosen disinfectant must be safe for use with dogs and 
be effective against dog pathogens. There should be greater involvement with the registered 
veterinary surgeon to ensure that there is a complaint cleaning protocol. 

1.7. Environmental management 
1.7.1. The large open area will be difficult to effectively manage for temperature control. On a wet 

but not particularly cold day, dog bed temperatures were recorded at 10.5oC. That was with 
heating in place.  

1.7.2. There needs to be evidence that the heating systems can consistently deliver a minimum 
temperature of 10oC. In cold weather, there will be difficulty keeping the sleeping areas warm. 
On hot days there is a risk of temperatures above the required 26oC. 

1.7.3. There needs to be effective temperature monitoring and recording of maximum and 
minimum daytime temperatures. 

 
Conclusion 
 
At the time of inspection, this facility was not of a standard that was compliant with the MTCBC guidance. 
My advice would be to seek support and guidance from Pet Industry Federation or The Association of Dog 
Boarders. Both membership organisations will be able to provide effective advice. 
The significant non-compliance noted above prevents me from supporting a licence for this facility. 
 
Declaration of Interest 
None noted  
 

Page 56



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Hughes, Aneurin
Sent: 05 March 2020 12:39
To: 'julesbones2'
Cc: Baber, Joanne
Subject: Application for Animal Boarding Establishment Licence - Dogsden Daycare Ltd 

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]
Attachments: Vet Report DogsDen Ltd Feb 2020.pdf

Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Good Afternoon Julian, 
 
Further to the above application and the inspection of the premises by the Licensing Department and the 
authorised vet on the 24th February 2020, I can advise that I am now in receipt of the Vet’s report – a copy 
is attached for your information. 
 
As the Vet has stated that he cannot support the application, the matter will now have to be determined by 
Members of the Licensing Committee.  I will be drafting a Report for them shortly.  I have not had a 
confirmed date for the Hearing as yet but as soon as I know I will inform you. 
 
The meeting will take place at the Civic Centre, Castle Street, Merthyr Tydfil and you will be invited to 
attend and address the Committee.  You may be assisted or represented by any person whether or not that 
person is legally qualified, and you will receive a copy of the report and any supporting documents in 
advance of the Hearing. 
 
I trust this clarifies the matter, but, should you have any further enquiries please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
Cofion/Regards 
 
Aneurin 
 
Aneurin Hughes 
Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 
 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Canolfan Ddinesig / Civic Centre 
Stryd y Castell / Castle Street 
Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 
  
Ffôn / Tel: 01685 725000 
E-bost / E-mail: aneurin.hughes@merthyr.gov.uk 
 

Page 57

hughea1_15
Text Box
APPENDIX L



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Animal Boarding Licence
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10
	Appendix 11
	Appendix 12
	Appendix 13
	Appendix 14




